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FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors present the Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Business review and future developments

The company acts solely as a holding company. The company paid and received interest on intercompany loans in
both the current year and prior year. The directors expect no change to this position in the foreseeable future.

Principal risks and uncertainties’

The directors continually review and evaluate the risks that the company is facing. The principal uncertainties facing
the company relate primarily to its trading investments in India, Japan and Canada and the wider group.

Financial risk management

Impairment risk

An impairment risk is where the carrying value of an investment cannot be supported, and consequently an
impairment provision should be made as the assets are overstated. The company manages this risk by performing
impairment reviews of its investments on a regular basis and making suitable provisions as necessary.

Financial liability risk

Financial liability risk can arise where the company cannot settle its liabilities as they fall for payment. The company
manages this risk by ensuring group balances are agreed under suitable repayment terms.

Credit risk

The principal financial assets are group debtors. The credit risk is influenced by economic factors, however the
company manages this risk through group balance repayments.

Key performance indicators

Given the nature of the company, the directors do not believe further analysis using key performance indicators is
necessary for further understanding of financial performance.

2Bl

D Goad
Director

Date: September 26, 2023




FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Principal activities
The principal activity of the company continued to be that of a holding company.

Results and dividends
The resuits for_the_ year are set out on page 8.

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend.
Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

E Torgan (Resigned 1 August 2023)
B Webb Jr. (Resigned 1 August 2023)
D Goad (Appointed 27 July 2023)
A Laduca (Appointed 27 July 2023)

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors during the year.
These provisions remain in force at the reporting date.

Going concern .
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis for the following reasons:

The company has strong cash and net asset levels at both 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. As the
company provides treasury services to affiliated companies within Europe, the balance sheet includes significant
intercompany receivable and payable balances with affiliated companies. These balances include €32.9m (2021:
€26.6m) of intercompany creditors which are technically repayable on demand, and intercompany debtors of
€31.9m (2021: €22.6m) which are technically receivable on demand.

Any net borrowing requirements are covered by a letter of support from the US ultimate parent company, Shape
Technologies Group, Inc., to the company. Shape Technologies Group, Inc. has provided the company with an
undertaking that for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, it will continue to
make available such funds as are needed by the company and in particular will not seek repayment of the amounts
currently made available until the company is in a position to do so. This should enable the company to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting its liabilities as they fall due for repayment. Based on
this understanding, the directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The financial statements do not include any adjustments which would result from the basis of
preparation being inappropriate.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate
arrangements have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the absence of an Annual
General Meeting.

Strategic report

The company has chosen in accordance with Companies Act 2006, s. 414C(11) to set out in the company's
strategic report information required by Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008, Sch. 7 to be contained in the directors' report. It has done so in respect of financial risk
management.




FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, each director has taken all the necessary steps
that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and
to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

——a 7

D Goad
Director

Date: September 26, 2023




FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs-of-the-company-and-of-the—profit-or-loss—of the—companyfor that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to cnsure that the financial stalernenls comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FLOW HOLDING
LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Flow Holding Limited (the ‘company’) for the year ended 31 December
2022 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the statement of
changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:
« give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its profit for
the-year-then-ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practlce
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

.We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and appllcable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficient and approptriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FLOW HOLDING
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
«_we_have_not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 4, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal contro! as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help
identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to
ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for
the prevention and detection of fraud.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FLOW HOLDING
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit
engagement team:

. obtained an understanding of the nature of the industry and sector, including the legal and regulatory
framework that the company operates in and how the company is complying with the legal and regulatory
framework;

. inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of
fraud,

« discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on
the financial statements are FRS 102, the Companies Act 2006 and tax compliance regulations. We performed
audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial statements which
included reviewing financial statement disclosures.

The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the financial
statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but
were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the business rationale in
relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: https://iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ASHE A8 At LLA

Richard Eccles FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

103 Colmore Row

Birmingham

B3 3AG

27 September 2023




FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
Notes € €
Administrative expenses (103,938) (110,454)
Profit or loss on foreign exchange 99,759 248,242
Operating (loss)/profit 5 (4,179) 137,788
Interest receivable from group undertakings 6 493,000 382,567
Interest payable to group undertakings 7 (46,990) (32,115)
Other interest payable and similar expenses 7 - (32)
Profit before taxation 441,831 488,208
Tax on profit ’ - 8 . (88582 (121,448)
Profit for the financial year 383,249 366,760




Company Registration No. 06879144
FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021

Notes € € € . €
Fixed assets
Investments 9 2,935,631 2,935,631
Current assets
Debtors falling due after more than one
year " 7,204,034 6,550,032
Debtors falling due within one year " 24,745,128 16,071,645
Cash at bank and in hand 1,304,014 . 3,965,161

33,253,176 26,586,838

Creditors: amounts falling due within
ohe year 12 (32,893,175) (26,610,086)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 360,001 ' (23,248)
Total assets less current liabilities 3,295,632 2,912,383
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 1,149 1,149
Profit and loss reserves 14 3,294,483 2,911,234
Total equity 3,295,632 2,912,383

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on September 26, 2023 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Y )

%
s

Director




FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Profit and Total
capital loss
reserves
€ € €
Balance at 1 January 2021 1,149 2,544,474 2,545,623
Year ended 31 December 2021:
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 366,760 366,760
Balance at 31 December 2021 1,149 2,911,234 2,912,383
Year ended 31 December 2022:
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 383,249 383,249
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,149 3,294,483 3,295,632

-10-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies

Company information

Flow Holding Limited is a private company limited by shares and is registered and incorporated in England
and Wales. The registered office is 12 Greenway Farm Bath Road, Wick, Bristol, BS30 5RL.

The-company's-principal-activities-and-nature.of-its-operations.are.disclosed.in_the_Directors’ Report.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (‘FRS 102"} and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006, including the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008.

The financial statements are presented in Euros, which is the functional and presentational currency of the
company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest €1.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

Consolidated financial statements

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements. Consequently, these financial statements present
the financial position and financial performance of the company as a single entity.

Reduced Disclosure

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the parent
of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company, which are
intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group.
The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure requirements:

« Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ — Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and
disclosures;
« Section 33 '‘Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation for key management personnel.

The financial statements of Flow Holding Limited are consolidated in the financial statements of Shape
Technologies Group, Inc. The consolidated financial statements of Shape Technologies Group, Inc. are
available from its registered office, 23500 64th Avenue South Kent, Washington 98032, USA.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis for the following reasons.

The company has strong cash and net asset levels at both 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. As the
company provides treasury services to affiliated companies within Europe, the balance sheet includes
significant intercompany receivable and payable balances with affiliated companies. These balances include
€32.9m (2021: €26.6m) of intercompany creditors which are technically repayable on demand, and
intercompany debtors of €31.9m (2021: €22.6m) which are technically receivable on demand.

Any net borrowing requirements are covered by a letter of support from the US ultimate parent company,
Shape Technologies Group Inc, to the company. Shape Technologies Group Inc has provided the company
with an undertaking that for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, it will
continue to make available such funds as are needed by the company and in particular will not seek
repayment of the amounts currently made available until the company is in a position to do so. This should
enable the company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting its liabilities as
they fall due for repayment. Based on this understanding, the directors believe that it remain appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments which would result from the basis of preparation being inappropriate.

-11-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Fixed asset investments

Interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any
impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial instruments and include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic-Financial Instruments’ of FRS 102 to all
of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include amounts owed by group undertakings and cash and bank balances, are
initially measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
are settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of
the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Basic financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including other creditors and amounts due to group undertakings, are initially
recognised at transaction price.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company's contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled, or they expire. -

-12-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1

Accounting policies (Continued)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of
transaction costs.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense. Current tax assets are recognised when tax
paid exceeds the tax payable.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, if and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on the net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date. Timing
differences are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in different periods from their recognition in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered
by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (foreign currency) are initially recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rate ruling at the date of the transaction, or, if the asset or liability is measured at fair value, the rate when
that fair value was determined.

All translation differences are taken to profit or loss.

-13-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptiohs are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of investments and debtors

Determining whether the cost of investments and debtors are impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the asset to which they have been allocated or belong. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction on similar assets. The
value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset.

3 Employees
There were no employees during the year (2021: Nil).
4 Directors' remuneration

None of the directors received any remuneration, nor were any amounts payable, in respect of their services
to Flow Holding Limited during the year (2021: €Nil).

5 Operating (loss)/profit

2022 2021
Operating (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging: € €
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's financial
statements 18,771 16,288
6 Interest receivable and similar income
2022 2021
€ €
Interestincome
Interest receivable from group companies 493,000 382,567
7 Interest payable and similar expenses
2022 2021
€ €
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans - 32
Interest payable to group undertakings 46,990 32,115
46,990 32,147

-14-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

8 Taxation
2022 2021
€ €

Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period 84,047 82,692
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (25,465) 14,358
Total current tax 58,582 97,050
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences - 24,398
Total tax charge 58,582 121,448
The total tax charge for the year included in the statement of comprehensive income can be reconciled to the
profit before tax multiplied by the standard rate of tax as foliows:

2022 2021

€ €
Profit before taxation 441,831 488,208
Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 18.00% (2021: 19.00%) 83,948 92,760
Adjustments in respect of prior years (26,295) 14,358
Exchange difference arising on movement between opening and closing spot
rates 929 14,330
Taxation charge for the year 58,582 121,448
In the budget on 3 March 2021, the UK Government announced an increase in the main UK corporation tax
rate from 19% to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. The change in rate was substantively enacted on 24 May
2021. Deferred tax has been calculated at 25% which was the tax rate substantively enacted at 31 December
2021.
9 Fixed asset investments

2022 2021
Notes € €
Investments in subsidiaries 10 2,935,631 2,935,631

-15-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

9 Fixed asset investments (Continued)

Movements in fixed asset investments

Shares in
group
undertakings
€
Cost
At 1 January 2022 & 31 December 2022 2,935,631
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2022 2,935,631
At 31 December 2021 2,935,631
10 Subsidiaries
Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 are as follows:
Name of undertaking Address Nature of business Class of % Held
shares held Direct Indirect .
Flow Bangalore Waterjet Private Limited 1 Water cutting Ordinary 99.99 -
equipment
Flow Japan Corporation 2 Water cutting Ordinary 100.00 -
equipment
Tech-Con Automation ULC 3 Water cutting Ordinary 100.00 -
equipment
Riverstone Pressure Systems Limited 4 Water cutting Ordinary - 100.00
equipment
Registered office addresses:
1 6/1, Primrose Road, Gurappa Avenue, Bangalore, Karnataka 560025, India
2 Level 18 Yebisu Garden Place Tower, 4-20-3 Ebisu, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-6018, Japan
3 1219 Corporate Drive, Burlington, Ontario L7L 5V5, Canada
4 6231 - 41 Street Leduc, Alberta, T9E 0V7, Canada
11 Debtors
2022 2021
Amounts falling due within one year: € €
Corporation tax recoverable ' 1,762 60,471
Amounts owed by group undertakings 24,743,366 16,011,174
24,745,128 16,071,645

-16-



FLOW HOLDING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

11 Debtors (Continued)

2022 2021

Amounts falling due after more than one year: € €
Amounts owed by group undertakings 7,204,034 6,550,032
Total debtors 31,949,162 22,621,677

12  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021
€ ’ €

Amounts owed to group undertakings 32,854,704 26,565,930
Other creditors 22,521 21,180
Accruals and deferred income 15,950 22,976

32,893,175 26,610,086

13  Share capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Ordinary share capital Number Number € €
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of €1.14 each 1,004 1,004 1,149 1,149

The company has one class of ordinary shares which have full voting rights, dividend and capital contribution.
The class does not confer to any rights of redemption.

14 Reserves

Profit and loss reserves
The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits and losses net of distribution to owners.

15  Ultimate controlling party

The immediate parent company is Flow Foreign Holdings B.V., a company incorporated in the Netherlands.
The largest and smallest group in which the results of this company are consolidated is that of Shape
Technologies Group, Inc., a company incorporated in the USA. The consolidated accounts of Shape
Technologies Group Inc. are available from the company's registered office 23500 64th Avenue South Kent,
Washington 98032, USA.

The ultimate controlling entity is Shape Funding, LLC., a company incorporated in the USA.

The ultimate controlling party is American Industrial Partners Capital Fund V, L.P.

-17-



CHNOLOGIES GROUP

SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.

i

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
December 31, 2022

*ACCXNBRM*
A45 27/09/2023 #165
COMPANIES HOUSE



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes for the
year ended December 31, 2022, included elsewhere in this report. Amounts in the annual consolidated financial statements are
in United States dollars.

Forward-looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking
statements that are based on our management’s current expectations, estimates and projections about our business and
operations and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ from the results referred to in
the forward-looking statements, and such differences may be material.

These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to our growth strategy, costs,
financial position and financial results, economic and business outlook, prospects and trends of our industry segment, expected
growth in demand for products and services, the dates of expected or scheduled deliveries, orders and project execution in
general, objectives, projects, targets, priorities, business strategy, and the expected impact of the legislative and regulatory
environment and legal proceedings. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology such as "may", "will", "expect”, "intend", "anticipate", "plan ", “foresee", "believe", "continue" or "maintain", the
negative of these terms, variations of them or similar terminology. By their nature, forward-looking statements require us to
make assumptions and are subject to important known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which may cause actual results in
future periods to differ materially from forecasted results. While we consider our assumptions to be reasonable and appropriate
based on information currently available, there is a risk that they may not be accurate. Readers should not place undue reliance
on forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements contained herein are made as of the date hereof and are subject
to change thereafter, and we have no intention and undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by applicable securities regulations.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of the Financial Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Shape Technologies Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries in this report have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP”), as published
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The following discussion and analysis includes both financial measures in accordance with GAAP, as well as non-GAAP
financial measures. A non-GAAP financial measure is generally defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission as one
that purports to measure historical or future financial performance, financial position or cash flows but excludes or includes
amounts that could not be so adjusted in the most comparable GAAP measure. We present Consolidated EBITDA as a non-
GAAP financial measure because we believe it provides investors with additional information to measure our performance and
evaluate our ability to service our indebtedness. Our management uses Consolidated EBITDA as a performance measure along
with other measures to evaluate our business. We believe that the presentation of Consolidated EBITDA is appropriate to
provide additional information to investors about certain material non-cash items and about certain other adjustments that we do
not expect to continue at the same level in the future. Further, we believe Consolidated EBITDA provides a meaningful
measure of operating profitability because we use it for evaluating our business performance and understanding certain
significant items. Consolidated EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance in accordance with GAAP. Non-GAAP
measures have limitations as analytical tools, and Consolidated EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative measure of
our net income (loss), operating performance, cash flow or liquidity. Although we believe that it enhances the understanding of
our financial condition and resuits of operations, this non-GAAP financial measure, when viewed by itself, is not necessarily a
better indicator of any trend as compared to GAAP measures (e.g., income (loss) from operations, net sales, net income (loss),
and cash flow from operations) computed in accordance with GAAP. In addition, investors should be aware that adverse
economic, industry and end-market conditions may negatively impact our cash flow.

We define EBITDA as net income or loss before interest expense, net, income taxes, and depreciation and amortization of
other intangible assets and goodwill. We define Consolidated EBITDA as EBITDA excluding: (i) non-cash impairment charge
and write-downs of assets; (ii) transaction costs, which include reimbursement of expenses incurred by American Industrial
Partners (“AIP” or our “Sponsor”) and costs incurred by us relating to acquisitions, including earn-out costs to prior owners of
acquired businesses and transaction related and other post-closing costs; (iii) stock compensation expense for awards under our
equity plan; and (iv) restructuring and business optimization charges associated with cost reduction initiatives and efforts to



enhance our global footprint. Consolidated EBITDA also includes pro forma cost savings related to various initiatives, such as
for (v) factory consolidations; (vi) procurement initiatives; (vii) reductions in selling, general, and administrative expenses; and
(viii) other savings. Investors in our industry and analysts assessing our industry routinely use EBITDA as a supplementary
non-GAAP financial measure to evaluate operating performance and cash flow and the Company's ability to service its debt.

Readers should be aware when evaluating Consolidated EBITDA that in the future we may incur expenses similar to those
excluded when calculating this measure. Our presentation of this measure should not be construed as an inference that our
future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. In addition, our computation of Consolidated EBITDA may
not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by other companies, because not all companies calculate
Consolidated EBITDA in the same fashion.

Business Overview

SHAPE is a market-leading process solutions manufacturer leveraging our core Ultra High Pressure (“UHP”) technology.

We are focused on solutions for advanced materials processing in fast growing target markets with blue chip customer groups.
We benefit from our deep Intellectual Properties ("IP") portfolio, heavy aftermarket concentration which benefits from an
installed base of approximately 14,000 active UHP pumps, or $900 million of installed base. We are a leading provider of UHP
waterjet pumps, robotic cutting solutions and aftermarket components that are integrated into systems worldwide. We are also
a leading designer and manufacturer of waterjet cutting solutions, with the largest market share of the waterjet cutting market,
based on revenues, on a global basis. Waterjet cutting technology uses ultra-high velocity streams of water (over three times
the speed of sound) to cut a broad range of materials, ranging from food, paper products, carpet and plastics, to stone,
aluminum, steel and engineered materials including carbon fiber composites. Our UHP technology is also used across our
surface preparation and industrial cleaning systems, where high-velocity streams of water are used to strip, clean and prepare
surfaces for painting and other coatings. With offerings that span hardware, software, process control, robotic assembly, parts
and support, we deliver technical know-how that transforms our customers’ visions into reality.

The end-markets where our customers deploy our technology include, among others, aerospace, automotive, food
processing, glass cutting and milling, electronics, paper slitting and trimming, and stone fabricators selling into the residential
and commercial construction markets. A significant component of our business is aftermarket sales and service into all of our
end-markets, for our systems and pumps as well as those produced by competitors. UHP technology customers are frequent
buyers of replacement components, consumables and support services. Our aftermarket sales and service provide a consistent
and recurring element to our revenues that grows consistently with the expansion of our installed base of pumps and systems.



Results of Operations
Consolidated Results
Year Ended December 31,2022 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2021

A comparison of our performance is included below (in thousands except percentages):

Years ended 2022 vs. 2021
December 31, Increase (Decrease)
e 2022 2021 7 $ %
'—(Aftermarket sales———— — —= e $.246,469 - -$.235,034___$__ 11435 _____ 4.9 %‘
Equipmentsales 206,384 162,075 44309 27, 37%
Totalsales ... 452853 397009 55744 140%
r@rfzi%m?_rfs_i}z_w_,,,,,,., 66527 8888 17639 118%
[ ‘ . |
Expressed as a ‘V 0f total sales L e B R —
(Grossmargin ;_: 8% 3s%. . (7%
Operating expenses, excluding restructuring and impairments 326 % o 3§ $S%  (59%
Operatingincome . 69% _ 42% ___  27%

Sales increased by $55.7 million or 14.0% for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. Aftermarket sales increased $11.4 million or 4.9% and equipment sales increased $44.3 million or 27.3%.
Aftermarket sales growth was driven by price and volume increases in spare parts and higher service revenue. Systems revenue
increased as a result of increased sales of Flow Mach series waterjet systems and higher project volumes across our robotics and
automation business. '

Gross margin increased $17.6 million or 11.8% for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. This increase was driven primarily by higher sales volumes and pricing and was partially offset by higher
freight and raw material costs.

Operating Expenses (in thousands except percentages):

Years ended 2022 vs. 2021
December 31, Increase (decrease)
2022 2021 $ %

Sales and marketing 3 63227 59,805 3,422 5.7 %
(General and administrative ~~§ 62367 $ 6001l § 2356  39%
_l@g:g:grih_and development e - 9,_3_2~8~ FW9/,603 . (275) (2. 9)%
|Impairment of long-lived assets e 12 1020 (868)  (85.0%
Restuoturingcharges 346 1935 (1Ls89)  (820)%
Total operatingexpenses ___ _$ 135420 § 132374 § 3046  23%

Operating expenses increased $3 million or 2.3% for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. The increase in operating expenses was primarily a result of higher variable sales and marketing costs and
higher transaction costs included in general and administrative expenses. These higher year-over-year operating expenses were
partially offset by a reduction in restructuring costs.



Income Taxes (in thousands except percentages):

Years ended 2022 vs. 2021
December 31, Change
2022 2021 $
Income tax provision @47 § 2926 § G571
Effective taxrate ~ 638% = 151%

Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 varled from the federal statutory rate due to forelgn
operations, non-deductible items and our limitation on foreign tax credits.

Reconciliation of Net Loss to EBITDA and to Consolidated EBITDA (unaudited, amounts in thousands)

Years ended

December 31,

- S S B - 2022 2021
Metincome (loss) & 487§ (384)
Interest expense,net S 18,522 13,340
lnu)me X prnvismn ) L RA ALY
Depreciation and amortlzatlon e o 7 o 25,960 29 692
(EBITDA o 57,796 45574
Adjustmonts to GBITDA e
_Earn-out costs to prior owners of acqu1red busmesses (a) S 5806 3,232
Transactlon related and other post-closingcosts(y ) ‘5;4<§7 :‘ 803
‘Business transformatlon costs (c) 210 —
Unreallzed torelgn currency translatxon (gams) losses (d) ‘ ) 7 7 ’ “ﬁﬁi 7 q 7 777507“—v
'Non-cash stock-based compensation expenses 1533
Restructurmg plancosts¢¢ 346 1935 ‘
Impalrment of long-lived assets (f) B e 152 1,020
Pro forma selling, general, and admmlstratxve reductlons (g,) e S = 807‘
Wgte downs of assetsand otherh) B o - 1,079 589
Total adjustments 9.003 8419,
Consolidated EBITDA $§ 66799 $§ 53993

(a) Represents earn-out provisions to prior owners of businesses we acquired in 2018 and 2021. The potential cash payments
are based on certain services and performance metrics.

(b) Reflects certain costs related to acquisition activities, including acquisition and investment related expenses.

(c) Reflects costs related to the adoption of accounting standard ASC 842.

(d) Represents the net impact of unrealized losses primarily caused by foreign currencies weakening against the US dollar.

(e) Reflects costs primarily related to severance costs and for excess facility costs related to the exit of contract cutting
operations in North America and Europe.

(f) Reflects costs related to certain non-cash write downs of assets related to capitalized facility costs related to the exit of
certain product lines.

(g) Reflects the reduction of personnel in the sales and marketing, research and development, and general and administrative
functions.

(h) Reflects certain non-recurring transactions including write downs of inventory and other assets and extraordinary expense
items not included in 'Restructuring plan costs' above.



Liquidity and Capital Resources (amounts in thousands)

Years ended
December 31,

) ’ ) S 7 o 2022 2021
‘Net cash from operating activities ] ) ‘ -~ $ 9947 § 32,238
Net cash from investing activities o (13,646) (9,009)
‘Net cash ﬁ”bm financing a’c_tivitiireis o 35 (19,567)
Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on cash and restricted cash 408 (281)
:N“gg change in _c.aMd réstfi;:téd cash_ » $ (3,256) $ 3,381

A summary of the changes in net cash flows is as follows:
Net cash from operating activities

The cash provided by operating activities of $9.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, was attributable to profits
before non-cash expenses, an increase of customer deposits and deferred revenue of $3.5 million related to advanced payments
on system sales, offset by an increases in inventories and accounts receivable of $22.9 million and $12.2 million, respectively,
related to higher sales volumes and risk mitigation activities associated with longer supply chain lead times in 2022.

The cash provided by operating activities of $32.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, was attributable to
profits before non-cash expenses, an increase of customer deposits and deferred revenue of $16.0 million related to advanced
payments on system sales, offset by an increase in inventories of $16.6 million related to higher sales volumes and risk
mitigation activities associated with longer supply chain lead times during the second half of 2021.

Net cash from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities includes the acquisition of Evomatic AB of $3.6 million, net of cash acquired, and
includes property and equipment expenditures of $8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

For the year ended year ended December 31, 2021, net cash used in investing activities includes the acquisition of
Riverstone Waterjets Ltd. of $0.9 million, net of cash acquired, and includes property and equipment expenditures totaling $7.2
million.

Net cash from financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2022, was $35,000 and included drawing $5
million on our revolving line of credit and paying $4.9 million of Bank term debt and other long-term debt.

Net cash used by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021, was $19.6 million and included paying $13.5
million on our revolving line of credit and $6.1 million of Bank term debt and other long-term debt.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes for
the year ended December 31, 2022, included elsewhere in this report.



Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting
Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842), which requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by
lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under the previous guidance. As a result of the adoption, the Company
recorded both operating lease ROU assets and lease liabilities of $26.3 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the Company entered into new ROU asset leases obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilities of $5.5 million. The
adoption of the new lease standard did not materially impact consolidated net income or consolidated cash flows and did not
result in a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022.

See Note 1, Recently Issued' Accounting Pronouncements, to our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes for the
year ended December 31, 2022, included elsewhere in this report, for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements
applicable to us.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Shareholders and Board of Directors

Shape Technologies Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shape Technologies Group, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022
and 2021, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ deficit
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements
(collectively, the financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the resuits of their operations and their
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting
for leases in 2022 due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Accounting Standards
Codification Topic 842, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to
be issued.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING

1

RSMUSLLP is the U.S, member firm of RSM Internationa, a glebal network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit rsniuzs.com//abioutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and
RSM barnational,



Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting 2 material misstatement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

PSKh 1S LLP

Seattle, Washington
March 30, 2022



SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

December 31,

. ASsETS

Currentassets:
. _Cash

) Receivables net

_Inventories, net

_ Prepaid expenses and other current assets

. Total current assets -
Property, plant and equrpment net/ o
Operatmg lease right-of-use assets i B
Goodwill, net

‘Other intangible assets net )
Deferred income taxes -
JNu fram Tarent, ("rumpany

VQEher long-term assets - S
) Total assets ' - $

LIABILI TIES AND SVTOCKHAOYLDERS DEFICI T
‘(,urrent llabllrtrec o S S o
~Accounts payable B $
i ‘Bank term debt, short-ten'n
_Other debt, short-term

P e e

’» ~ Accrued payroll and related lrabllmes

1

_ Taxes payable and other acerued_ta_)ges -
L Accrued expenses

Customer deposits a and deferred revenue

3/7 Operatmg lease liabilities, short’-terrm"; -

Total current llabllltles

j Banl( term debt, net, long-term

Revolvmg loan

Operatmg lease llabrlrtles, long-term o
Other debt, long-term
'Defeuud sy sy -

Long-term payables S

Total liabilitics

Stockholders deﬂcrt

Commion stock $.001 par value 1UU 00U shares authorlzed b5 VLU shares issued and

l,rw’outstandmg o
~ Additional paid-in capltal in excess of par

VAccumulated deficit

‘Accumulated other comprehenswe loss o
Cumulative translatron adjustment, net of tax

~ Total stockholders’ deficit

2022 2021
S 11324 $ 14621
71945 60, 133
118586 99,719 |
27,133 18,843
228988 193316
712 45,936
26951 —
80427 90454
32603 37242
1,110 2,286
~.amn a7
6,898 5,966
430479 $ 384990
40127 §8 35, 716
3500 3,500
s ;.
12,698 12,079 |
B9 3%
12968 10487
39782 35324
459  —
125837 102224
328149 330164
800 -
o232 —
54 3,306
3813 3300
12,542 10,318
497,777 449312
LA 131396
(159,405  (164222)
(39,304)  (31,496) |
(67,298) (64,322)
430479 § 384,990

‘Total habilities and stockholders dehcrt . I $

See Accompanying Notes to Cprllsolldated Fmancral Statements



SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021
Sales $ 452,853 $ 397,109
Cost of sales 286,326 248,221
Gross margin o 166,527 148,888
Operating expenses: _ )

- -+ Salesandmarketing - T T T ST : T T 763,227 T 59,805
General and administrative 62,367 60,011
Research and development 9,328 - 9,603
Impairment of long-lived assets 152 1,020
Restructuring charges o - 316 1,933

Total operating expenses 135,420 132,374
Operating income . o o ] ) ) 31,107 16,514
:(i)‘ther incomé (éxpense), net: )
Interest expense, net 7 (18,522) (13,340)
Foreign exchange gains (losses) 540 (806)
Qther, net 189 174
Other expense, net (17,793) (13,972)
Income before income taxes 13,314 2,542
Income tax provision (8,497) (2,926)
Net income (loss) $ 4817 § (381)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended
December 31,
e e 2022 2021
(Netincome(loss) . e 548178 (384) |

Other comprehensive loss:

- Cumulative translation adjustment, et ofbes o (808 (5723) |
Total-comprehensive-loss $__(2,991)__%__(6,107)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021

_Cash flows from operating activities: o s S
Net income (loss) ) $ 4817 3 (384) ;

Adjustments to re reconcrle net iincome (loss) to net cashp provrded by operatmg actrvrtres o

Dupwuuhuu - ) e ' r‘ 8”116 17*71‘02577'

Amortization of. mtanglble-assets —— 17. 814———«————19 465v -

} _WAII_'IOI'HZZII’IOH ofdeferred financing costs o e ,,m_‘m_“- o 1-,‘,_:.;_,1,.,..“ o 1 895
_ Reduction of right-of-use asset - ,99?'?“,‘9,&1_?3,*?"1 S S 42 =
. . Assetimpairment chwges . s 1,020 )

‘ Stock-based  compensation 15 33

| Warranty expense 2125 2,059

_ Inventory obsolescence expense o e L9y 1073

_ Baddebtexpense - 1| 17[)
Deferred income taxee - - o 727,7227}‘____4“_272‘
E _ Lafn-out coitingent hubrlrly udjusl.mculs B 7: - x 7 o VW“ f ; #_ vi 7 75,242 B B %;7‘2,548 ‘)
B Changesmoperatmg assets andlrgbrhtresAnefofacqursrtrons S - S
. Receivables,net 7 _ a1 2019

Inventories, net o (22, 890) ( 16 640)

B Otherassets e . 388) 77777(2?9207))

~Accounts payable e 5408 511

_Accrued expenses ) e ‘ *imt - 7%169 - (9%¢6) i

B Customer deposits and deferred revenue 3, A87 16,167

L Other long-term llabllltles ) —7-_ j—ri e ,’,« - 1,16l »,7,7,,,, (130)
_ Operating lease liability s (432) —

‘Net cash provided by operatmg actrvmes %947 32238 -

| e e et e s e

Cash ﬂows from investing activities:

[ﬁ Expenditures for property and equrpment nee o (8,935) _ﬁ B ‘(7 222) ‘
__Expenditures for intangible assets . (080 (§i§),
_ Acquisitions, net of cash acquied (3,631) (939)
~ Net cash used in mvestmgractlyltles e (13,646) (9,009)
:Cuslr ﬂuws Gow fiwaneing adliviies, o ﬁ
_ Repayments of bank term debt 3500 3,500)

_ Net borrowings (repayments) under revnlvmg credlt fanlmes B i 5000  (13,500) .‘
 Repayments of long-term debt (53) (732)

| Repaywensofshotonndebl WAy 7))
_ Repayments on caprtal leases e — (125)
f\',,, _ Net eash provided by (used m) hnancmg actrvrhes ) N S S ‘ ‘ 35 (19,567)

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on cash and resfrlcted cash o o 408 (281)
Net  change in cash and restriotoed cash (3256 3 381”5

Cash and restricted cash, begmmng of perrod - 18,892 15,511

[Cash and restricted cash, end of period ~~~ § 15636 § 18892 .
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SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

[

¢
|

Yearended

~ December31,
2022 2021
"Suppleiental disclosures of cash flow information: i
_ Non-cash acquisition consideration $ 491 § 1,468

Lo
.

. Non-cash right of usc asscts obtained in cxchange for new operating leese liabilities

L.

Imerest

Cash paiaal;i}}g the period for:

Income taxes

4313

2,768

550 ]

BRI C R

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
(Amounts in thousands)

Common Stock Accumulated
Additional other
Par paid-in Accumulated comprehensive
. o - Shares value capital deficit loss Total

[Balances, December 31,2020 63 5 — $ 131363 $_(I63838) §  (25773) $_(58.248)
Netloss ' — — — (384) — (384)
‘Currency translation adjustment, net of tax _ —  —  — — (5.723) (5,723)
Stock-based compensation — — 33 — — 33
L]izllggggs_, December 31, 2021 63 § — $ 131396 3§ (164,222) $ (31,496) $ (64,322)f
Net loss - — — - i 4,817 - 4,817
}r(;‘urrengy Trahslation adjustiment, et of tax — = o e ] 808) ('/,808]
Stock-based compensation — — 15 — — 15
Balances, December 31,2022 63 § — $ 131411 $ (159405 §  (39,304) § (67.298)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SHAPE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Shape Technologies Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company" or "Shape Technologies Group" or "SHAPE") provide
solutions based on its Ultra High Pressure (“UHP”) technology to manufacturers. The Company is a 100%-owned subsidiary
of Shape Technologies Group Parent Holdings, Inc. (the "Parent Company"). The Company provides UHP waterjet pumps,
robotic cutting solutions and aftermarket components that are integrated into systems worldwide. SHAPE focuses on solutions
for advanced materials processing for prominent customers in fast-growing markets. SHAPE's business strategy focuses on
selling UHP equipment and providing aftermarket parts, consumables, and services to an installed base of UHP technology.
SHAPE also designs and manufactures waterjet cutting solutions.

Waterjet cutting technology uses ultra-high velocity streams of water (over three times the speed of sound) to cut a broad
range of materials, ranging from food, paper products, carpet and plastics, to stone, aluminum, steel and engineered materials
including carbon fiber composites. SHAPE's UHP technology is also used in its surface preparation and industrial cleaning
systems, in which high-velocity streams of water are used to strip, clean and prepare surfaces for painting and other coatings.
SHAPE's offerings include hardware, software, process control, robotic assembly, parts and support, and the technical
knowledge to meet customer needs.

The end-markets in which SHAPE's customers deploy its technology include aerospace, automotive, food processing, glass
cutting, clectronies, paper slitting and trimming, and stane fahricatars selling into the residential and commercial construction
markets. A significant component of SHAPE's business is aftermarket sales into all of its end-markets, for its systems and
pumps as well as those produced by competitors. UHP technology customers are frequent buyers of replacement components,
consumables and support services. The Company conducts business on a global basis that includes manufacturing facilities
located in the United States, Canada, France, Sweden, and South Korea.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Shape Technologies Group and all of its wholly owned
subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Foreign Currency

The local currency is the functional currency for substantially all operations outside of the United States. Assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect as of the Company's balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are
translated at the average monthly exchange rates throughout the year. The effects of exchange rate fluctuations in translating
assets and liabilities of international operations into U.S. dollars are accumulated and reflected as a cumulative translation
adjustment in the accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive loss.

Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

S - o 7 o 2022 2021
Foreign exchange gains (losses), net presented in cost of goods sold o v $ 22 3 23)
[Foreign exchange gains (losses), net presented in other expense, net _ 540 (806)
Total , S , L S 562 8§ (829



Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain assumptions and estimates
about future events and apply judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. The Company bases its
assumptions, estimates, and judgment on historical experience, current trends and other factors which management believes to
be relevant and appropriate at the time the consolidated financial statements are prepared. Actual results could differ from
management's estimates and assumptions.

Cash

The Company's cash consists of demand deposits in large financial institutions. At times, balances may exceed federally
insured limits. At December 31, 2022, the Company had cash of $9.0 million held in foreign financial institutions which are
not federally insured.

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and currently due from customers and amounts not yet billed but eamed. The
Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
resulting from the inability or nunwillingness of customers to make required payments. Management determines the allowance
for doubtful accounts by evaluating individual customer receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit
history, and current economic conditions. The Company prepares an analysis of its ability to collect outstanding receivables
that provides a basis for an allowance estimate for doubtful accounts.

Based on this evaluation, the Company establishes a reserve for specific accounts receivable that are believed to be
uncollectible, as well as an estimate of uncollectible receivables not specifically known. Historical trends and the Company’s
current knowledge of potential collection problems provide the Company with sufficient information to establish a reasonable
estimate for an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded
when received. Bad debt expense, net of recoveries, is recorded in Sales and marketing expense in the consolidated statements
of operations. .

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of
receivables and cash. The Company maintains cash with various major financia! institutions. The Company performs periodic
evaluations of the relative credit standing of these financial institutions and limits the amount of credit exposure with any
institution. In addition to performing credit worthiness analyses on our customer base, credit risks related to receivables are
mitigated by the diversity of our customers across many different industry sectors and geographic regions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs included in inventories consist of materials, labor
and manufacturing overhead, which are related to the purchase or production of inventories. The Company uses the first-in,
first-out method to determine its cost of inventories. If inventory costs exceed expected net realizable value due to
obsolescence, or quantities in excess of expected demand, the Company records reserves for the difference between the cost and
the net realizable value in Cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations. These reserves are recorded based on
recent sales history and current quantities on-hand.



Leases

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting
Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842), which requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by
lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under the previous guidance. The original guidance required application
on a modified retrospective bases with the earliest period presented. In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Targeted
Improvements to ASC 842, which included an option to not restate comparative periods in transition and elect to use the
effective date of ASC 842, Leases, as the date of initial application of transition, which the Company elected.

The Company elected the "package of practical expedients" under the transition guidance within Topic 842, in which the
Company does not reassess (1) the historical lease classification, (2) whether any existing contracts at transition are or contain
leases, or (3) the initial direct costs for any existing leases. The Company has not elected to adopt the "hindsight” practical
expedient;-and-therefore-will-measure-the-ROU-asset-and-lease-liability-using-the.remaining-portion_of_the_lease_term_upon___
adoption of ASC 842 on January 1, 2022.

The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date on which the terms of the
contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and obligations. A contract is or contains a lease when (i)
explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been deployed in the contract and (ii) the Company obtains substantially all of the
economic benefits from the use of that underlying asset and directs how and for what purpose the asset is used during the term
of the contract. The Company also considers whether its service arrangements include the right to control the use of an asset.

The Company made an accounting policy election available under Topic 842 not to recognize ROU assets and lease
liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all other leases, ROU assets and lease liabilities are measured based
on the present value of future lease payments over the lease term at the commencement date of the lease (or January 1, 2022, for
existing leases upon the adoption of Topic 842). The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives. To determine the present value of
lease payments, the Company made an accounting policy election available to non-public companies to utilize the regional risk-
free borrowing rates for each business unit, which is aligned with the lease term at the lease commencement date (or remaining
term for leases existing upon the adoption of Topic 842).

Future lease payments may include fixed rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index (such as the
consumer price index), which is initially measured using the index or rate at lease commencement. Subsequent changes of an
index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base rent are recorded in variable lease expense in the period incurred.
Residual value guarantees or payments for terminating the lease are included in the lease payments only when it is probable,
they will be incurred.

The Company has made an accounting policy election to account for lease and non-lease components in its contracts as a
single lease component for its real estate, vehicle, and equipment asset classes. The non-lease components typically represent
additional services transferred to the Company, such as common area maintenance for real estate, which are variable in nature
and recorded in variable lease expense in the period incurred.

As a result of the adoption of ASC 842 on January 1, 2022, the Company recorded both operating lease ROU assets and
lease liabilities of $26.3 million, respectively. The adoption of the new lease standard did not materially impact consolidated
net income or consolidated cash flows and did not result in a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets Including Goodwill

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method, and, accordingly, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their acquisition date fair values. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of net assets, including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible assets. Identifiable
intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful lives on a straight-line basis, except for certain definite-lived
trade names, technology and customer relationship assets, which are amortized proportional to expected revenue. Acquisition-
related costs, including advisory, legal, accounting, valuation, and other similar costs, are expensed in the periods in which the
costs are incurred. The results of operations nf acquired husinesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the acquisition date.
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Intangible assets consist of acquired identifiable intangible assets as well as internally developed patents and trademarks.
Acquired identifiable intangible assets include customer relationships, order backlog, existing technology, patents and trade
names acquired. Trademarks and acquired in-process research and development ("IPR&D") have an indefinite life and are not
amortized. The fair value of IPR&D acquired in a business combination are capitalized and accounted for as indefinite-lived
intangible assets until completed and are then amortized over their remaining useful lives. The Company capitalizes application
fees, license fees, legal and other costs of successfully defending a patent from infringement. The remaining costs are expensed
as incurred.

Valuation of Other Intangible Assets with Indefinite Lives

The Company evaluates the recoverability of intangible assets with indefinite lives by comparing the carrying value to the
fair value of the related intangible asset. Impairment, if any, is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount of the
indefinite=lived-intangible-asset-over-its-fair-value—For-the-years-ended December 3.1, 2022-and-2021-the-Company-performed. ... ...
a qualitative assessment and determined there was not an impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Estimates and assumptions used to perform the impairment testing are inherently uncertain and can significantly affect the
outcome of the impairment test. Changes in operating results and other assumptions could materially affect these estimates.

Valuation of Goodwill

The Company follows the accounting guidance contained within Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-02,
Indefinite - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Accounting for Goodwill, which allows private companies an accounting
alternative for the subsequent measurement of goodwill. In accordance with the standard, an entity may elect to amortize
goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years, or less than 10 years if the entity demonstrates that another useful life is more
appropriate. The Company has elected to amortize goodwill over 10 years. Goodwill is evaluated at the entity level and tested
for impairment if a triggering event occurs, indicating potential impairment. The Company determined no triggering events
related to goodwill occurred during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets with Definite Lives

Long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment, leased right of use assets, cost-method investments, and acquired
identifiable intangible assets with definite lives as well as internally developed patents and internally developed soft,
trademarks, existing technology, patents and non-compete agreements. The Company capitalizes application fees, license fees,
legal and other costs of successfully defending a patent from infringement, as well as the costs of successfully defending a
trademark or trade name from infringement. The remaining costs are expensed as incurred.

Annually, and more frequently if circumstances warrant it, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its long-lived
assets to determine if circumstances exist indicating an impairment, or if depreciation or amortization lives should be modified.
If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment, the Company will prepare a projection of the undiscounted
future cash flows of the asset group and determine if the asset group is recoverable. If impairment exists based on these
projections, an adjustment will be made to the carrying amounts or remaining lives of the asset group to reflect the amount of
impairment. Such analysis necessarily involves significant judgments and estimations on the part of the Company. No
impairment was recognized as a result of this analysis during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The Company
recorded an impairment charge of $152,000 and $1.0 million related to equipment and leasehold improvements for discontinued
product lines for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Financing costs that are incurred by the Company in connection with the issuance of debt are deferred and amortized over
the life of the underlying indebtedness using the effective interest method. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
the Company recorded amortization of deferred financing costs of $1.1 million and $1.9 million, respectively. These
amortization costs are included as part of Interest expense in other expense, net in the consolidated statements of operations.
See "Note 7: Financing Arrangements" for further information on these financing activities.
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Warranty Liability

Products are warranted to be free from material defects for a period not to exceed two years from the date of installation.
Provisions for estimated warranty and other related costs are recorded in cost of sales and are periodically adjusted to reflect
actual experience. The amount of accrued warranty liability reflects management’s best estimate of the expected future costs of
honoring the Company’s obligations under its limited warranty plans. The costs of fulfilling the Company’s warranty
obligations principally involve replacement parts, labor and sometimes travel for any field retrofits. Warranty expense is
recorded in Cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred
tax-assets-and-liabilities-for-the-expected-future-tax-consequences-of-events-that-have-been-included-in-the-consolidated-financial
statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial
statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company records net deferred tax assets to the extent it believes these assets will more likely than not be realized. In
making such determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals
of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies and recent financial operations. In the event
the Company was to determine that it would not be able to realize its deferred income tax assets in the future in excess of its net
recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the valuation allowance which would increase the provision for
income taxes.

The Company's income tax returns are periodically audited by U.S. federal, state and local and foreign tax authorities.
These audits include questions regarding the Company's tax filing positions, including the timing and amount of deductions and
the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions. At any time, multiple tax years are subject to audit by the various tax
authorities. In evaluating the tax benefits associated with the Company's various tax filing positions, the Company records a tax
benefit for uncertain tax positions using the highest cumulative tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized. A number
of years may elapse before a particular matter, for which a liability has been established, is audited and effectively settled. The
Company adjusts its liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the period in which it determines the issue is effectively settled
with the tax authorities, the statute of limitations expires for the relevant taxing authority to examine the tax position or when
more information becomes available.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the income tax benefit line in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Accrued interest and penalties are included within Long-term
payables in the consolidated balance sheets as the amounts are not material for any of the balance sheet periods presented.

Fair Value Measurements
The fair values of the Company’s financial instruments reflect the amounts that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company
records its earn-out contingent consideration at fair value.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company, using operational and economic characteristics such as customer credit risk and upfront or deferred
payments, concludes that its revenue sources are from product and service sales. The Company believes these revenue sources
accurately depict how the nature, amounts, timing, and uncertainty of its revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors. :

The Company has defined contracts as agreements with its customers and distributors in the form of signed contracts,
purchase orders, and completed online orders. For each contract, the Company identifies its performance obligations, which is
delivering goods or services, determining the transaction price, allocating the contract transaction price to each performance
obligation (when applicable), and recognizing the revenue when (or as) the performance obligation to the customer is fulfilled.
A-good-or-service-is-transferred-when-the-customer-obtains-control-of-that.good-or-service —The-Company-treats contracts with
similar characteristics in the same fashion, without having to analyze each contract separately, as such treatment would not
materially differ from analyzing every contract separately. Certain contracts with customers contain a customer acceptance
clause. In these circumstances, the Company recognizes revenue upon customer acceptance provided all revenue recognition
criteria have been met.

The Company recognizes revenue for sales of advanced manufacturing solutions, which include UHP waterjet systems,
UHP pumps, cutting heads and after-market products upon shipment or delivery of the completed product to the customer as
specified by the customer purchase order. Advanced manufacturing solutions contain software that is essential to the
functionality of the machine ("the system"). System sales will also include incidental consumables and spares and essential
software and upgrades that are considered immaterial within the context of the contract with the customer.

Revenue attributable to systems that qualify as point in time is recognized when customers take control of the asset. For
equipment where installation is separately identifiable, the Company generally determines that control transfers when the
customer has obtained legal title and the risks and rewards of ownership, which is dependent upon the shipping terms within the
contract.

Service revenue, including primarily installation and training, is recognized over time either proportionately over the period
of the underlying contract or when services are complete, depending on the terms of the arrangement.

The Company offers repair and maintenance service contracts to its customers. Services under these contracts include
preventive maintenance and intensifier parts exchanges that cover a period of up to two years. These service contracts can be
bundled with the Company's UHP waterjet systems and are recognized ratably over their contractual® periods, which
approximates their pattern of utilization by the customers.

Transaction price allocation among multiple performance obligations is based on the relative standalone selling price
("SSP") of each distinct good or service in the contract. The determination of SSP for each distinct performance obligation
requires significant judgment from management. The Company determines SSP for performance obligations based on overall
pricing objectives, which takes into consideration market conditions, a review of historical sales data related to the size of
arrangements, customer demographics and the type of product sold or work being performed and is established for each of the
Company's performance obligations by maximizing the amount of observable inputs. When not sold separately, an estimate of
the standalone selling price is determined by what the Company estimates its customers would be willing to pay for the goods
or services in the market. The Company reviews and updates these estimates on an ongoing basis.

For customized systems, the Company recognizes revenue over time utilizing the input method using cost as a measure of
progress which most accurately presents the amount of goods and services that have been transferred to the customer as the
work is being performed. Incurred cost represents work performed, which corresponds with, and therefore depicts, the transfer
of control to the customer. Contract costs include labor, material, and certain allocated overhead expense. Material costs are
considered incurred, and therefore included in the cost-to-cost measure of progress, when they are used in manufacturing and
therefore customize the asset. Cost estimates are based on various assumptions to project the outcome of future events;
including labor productivity and availability, the complexity of the work to be performed, the cost of materials, and the
performance of subcontractors. Any expected losses for a contract are charged to earnings, in total, in the period such losses are
identified. The Company's contracts generally do not have variable consideration in the form of refunds, credits, rebates, price
concessions, pricing incentives or other items impacting transaction price.
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Total revenue recognized at a point in time and over time was as follows (in thousands):

Years ended

December 31,
2022 2021
Revenue recognized at a point in time s $§ 333815 § 297,239
Revenue recognizedovertime 119,038 _ 99870
Total sales $ 452,853 § 397,109

The Company has elected to exclude from revenue governmental assessed and imposed taxes on revenue transactions that

are billed to customers. The Company has also elected to treat shipping and handling activities that occur after control of the
product transfers as fulfillment activities, and therefore, does not account for shipping and handling costs as a separate
performance obligation. Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are recorded in revenue. Shipping costs incurred by
the Company are recorded in cost of goods sold. The Company has elected to expense sales commissions when incurred, as the
amortization period would have been one year or less, and these costs are recorded within Sales and marketing expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations. Commission expense recognized with repair and maintenance service contracts is
insignificant.

The Company does not have any significant financing components in its customer arrangements. The Company may
extend credit to customers in line with industry standards where it is strategically advantageous. For contracts for which the
Company recognizes revenue over time, the Company recognizes revenue based on what it has the right to bill the customer.
The Company’s contract assets include trade accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings on contracts for customized equipment. These are further described in Note 3. The Company’s contract liabilities
include customer deposits and deferred revenue and totaled $39.8 million and $35.3 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

As described above, the Company offers warranties on various products and services. These warranties are assurance-type
warranties that are not sold on a standalone basis; therefore, they are not considered distinct performance obligations.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is generally recognized when the related revenue is recognized. Cost of sales includes direct and indirect
costs associated with the manufacture, installation, and service of the Company's systems pumps and consumable parts sales,
including estimated future warranty obligations. Direct costs include material and labor, while indirect costs include, but are
not limited to, depreciation, inbound freight charges, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs, warehousing costs,
internal transfer costs, other costs of the Company's distribution network, and foreign currency exchange gains and losses
related to inventory purchases and sales.

Adbvertising Costs

Adbvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in Sales and marketing expense in the consolidated statements of
operations and amounted to $1.1 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development efforts undertaken by the Company are expensed as incurred. Research and development
expenses were $9.3 million and $9.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Software Development Costs

Software development include costs to develop applications that are essential to system functionality. These costs are
capitalized at the point when software technological feasibility has been established and end when a product is available for
general release to customers. The Company establishes technological feasibility when a detailed program design has been
created or when, a working model has been completed. At December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Company did not have any
material capitalized software development costs.
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Sales and Long-Lived Assets by Region

The table below presents the Company's sales and long-lived assets categorized by geographical region, (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

2022 2021
Sales by Geographic Region:
United States o ~ o ______‘$ 264,260 $ 222,737
| Europe, Middle East, Africa SR o 100223 96522
-Asia Pacific ——— e 38,597
Camada i e
,Lit,‘,'ﬂmi“ci____ e 21,590 14 966
Total ) | | < ) § 452853 § 397,109

December 31,

2022 2021
Long\—Livcd Aggets: o e
{United Sates s 109911 $ 109,701
Europe Middle East, Africa - e 44350 33, 185
‘ASIa Pacific 24860 27, 521
Canada 8936 8019
LatinAmerica . .. S 17 SRS WY/
Total - $ 189,178 § 179,598

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
2021-08 Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers (Topic 805). This ASU
requires an acquirer in a business combination to recognize and measure contract assets and contract liabilities (deferred
revenue) from acquired contracts using the revenue recognition guidance in Topic 606. At the acquisition date, the acquirer
applies the revenue model as if it had originated the acquired contracts. The Company adopted ASU 2021-08 starting 2022,
which did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2019, The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in account standards. The
amendments in the ASU include removing exceptions to incremental intraperiod tax allocations of losses and gains from
financial statement components, exceptions to the method of recognizing income taxes on interim period losses, and exceptions
to deferred tax liability recognition related to foreign subsidiary investments. In addition, the ASU requires that entities
recognize franchise tax based on an incremental method and requires an entity to evaluate the accounting for step-ups in the tax
basis of goodwill as inside or outside of a business combination. The Company adopted ASU 2019-12 starting 2022, which did
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2016, the FASB issued accounting guidance, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which

requires companies to measure credit losses utilizing a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires

consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of its pending adoption of the new standard on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note 2: Business Combinations
2022 Acquisition of Evomatic

In 2022, the Company acquired 100% of the equity interest in Evomatic AB ("Evomatic"), a Sweden-based robotic and
custom automation integrator for $3.6 million, net of cash acquired. The acquisition was funded with cash on hand and
accounted for as a business combination. The acquisition of Evomatic expands our automation capabilities in high speed, path
intensive trimming applications across the European market.

The acquisition agreement did not contain an earn-out provision, however there is a holdback of $491,000 due to be paid
on November 30, 2023. The purpose of this holdback is to provide security for any claim under the specific indemnities listed
in the acquisition agreement. As of December 31, 2022, the Company has recorded a short-term liability with a fair value of
$491,000 e

Under the acquisition method, assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their fair values as of the acquisition
date. The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired includes accounts receivable, and the Company believes the fair value of
accounts receivable approximates the contractual amount. The Company engaged a valuation specialist to value the definite-
lived intangible assets using the following approaches to determine value - the income, market and cost approaches. Any
excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill, which is not amortized for
local country tax purposes. The allocation of the purchase price was as follows (in thousands):

e e e . . - S e e e e e e e e e e am g e PR e e e e

Cash considoration, not of eashequired St g a4
Holdback consideration . M

| Purchase price allocation:

Quemases s e
Deferred tax assets and non-currentassets . A6l
Definite-lived intangible assets 2,230
Total assets acquired R \Us2
Current liabilites ,63?9
\Deferred tax liabilities and non-current liabilites . 461/
Total liabilities assumed 6,960
Net assets acquired 3 3,631

2021 Acquisition of Riverstone

In the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company acquired 100% of the equity interest in Riverstone Waterjets Ltd.
("Riverstone"), including the customer lists and trade names, of a Canada-based distributor of water jet pumps and aftermarket
parts servicing the industrial market for $0.9 million, net of cash acquired. Total consideration included cash paid of $1.3
million and a contingent earn-out provision, based on financial results, with an acquisition date fair value of $1.4 million. The
remainder of the earn-out provision was deemed to be incentive compensation for future employment services as payments are
forfeited if the selling shareholders do not continue their employment with the Company. In the year ended December 31,
2022, the Company paid $2.7 million related to the first year of the three year earn-out period. For the years ended December
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company recorded expense of $5.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively, in General and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations related to changes in the estimated earn-out liability. The
remaining potential payout is estimated at $11.5 million as of December 31, 2022.
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Note 3: Receivables, net

Receivables, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

B - L 2022 2021
Tradeaccowntsregeivable . 6245 § 54091]
Unbilled revenues 24 872
{Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on contracts for customlzed equlpment o 13,127 ‘ 7,236 ]

, e BEO 6219
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts - T T (1g85)  (2,066)
Receivables, net $ 71945 §$§ 60,133 |

Unbilled revenues do not contain any amounts that are expected to be collected after one year.

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

— ' B L - o 2022 ' 2021
[Bcgmmng halance . . e L $ 2066 $ 31098_E
Provision for doubtful receivables S 580 129
{erte-qztf,_ and adjustments ﬁ o ' E e B (761)  ( 1,062)];
Ending balance $ 1,885 § 2,066

Note 4: Inventories, net

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

) o o o 2022 2021
[Raw materials, parts and components . . 3 N $ 111255 § 100,276
ng:]ilﬂ process . - - 1231 57091
E‘“'shed goods. . o ,,‘_w__;hm&_‘;; RS TN R B 10‘*‘219-', 4 985J
Reserve for obsolete and excess inventory o o (10,119) (10,633)
El_nmvgntories, net B ; - - 8 11858 $ 99,719 f

Raw materials, parts and components include purchased finished components, which are used both in production and sold
to customers as aftermarket parts.
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Note S: Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Property, plant and equipment acquired in an acquisition are stated at fair
value. Additions, leasehold improvements and major replacements are capitalized. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in
the consolidated statements of operations within operating income. Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is provided
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the related lease term or the useful life of the asset. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
as incurred. During 2022 and 2021, the Company evaluated on-going projects and product lines and determined to write-down
certain assets as a result. The Company recorded an impairment charge of $152,000 and $1.0 million for the years ended

Pecember-31;-2022-and-2021;-respectively;-for-certain-propertys-plant-and-equipment;-which-is-included-in-Impairment.of-long-——

lived assets on the consolidated statements of operations.

The carrying value of the Company's property, plant and equipment was as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

e Bange orfruseful llvefa B 2022 2021
119[&&:5.’5&&'@4 equmr;cnt . j;v w ww :WR ~ 5-Tyears 846525 8 47,071
10 - 40 vears for buxldmgs
Land and buildings o B o L - mdeﬁmte for landi 23504 23,852
Computer equlpment and software . S 4‘ ‘W 3 yf*arq - _,_7‘_473;7’81 . 19,599 J

Over the shorter of the life of
the asset or the remaining

Leasehold rmprovements B - L lease term 4219 3,997
fi’l—lirn_rn;;m—dramreq _,,_; . ‘ i U _ 3years 3,114 3,120]
Property and equipment not yet placed in service o N/A 4,233 2,550
L o e 102378 99,989 |
Acciumulated deprecnatlon o L o (58,666) (54,053)
>Propcrty plant and cquipment, net - e ~$ 43712 § 45,936 |

Depreciation expense was recorded as follows (in thousands):

Years ended

December 31,
S o B 2022 2021
Deprec1atxon expense - e Hw§ 8,146 §_V10,2~27Ji
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Note 6: Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company records goodwill and intangible assets in connection with acquisitions accounted for as business
combinations. Additionally, the Company records changes in goodwill and other intangible assets as a result of foreign
currency translation effect on goodwill and other intangible assets allocated to foreign locations along with amortization. The

carrying value of goodwill was as follows (in thousands):

Weighted
average
rellil:,:;nil:g December 31,
4 B _ years 2022 2021
"Goodwill _ — T T T II4393 S 13,094 — -
Less: accumulated amortlzatlon B o - ) B (33,966) (22,640)
(Total goodwill, net 3 80427 8 uasa

The Company follows the alternative method of accounting for goodwill and amortizes the balance over a useful life of 10

years. Amortization expense was recorded as follows (in thousands):

Years ended

December 31,
e o 2022 2021
,'; mn;1|7wt:;\n of g:mdwﬂl B s $ }1*3_26___1%1_1_’{93’
Expected amortization of goodwill held as of December 31, 2022 is as follows (in thousands):

z o ' - ]
(Year — - e _Amounts |
2023 e $ 11,489
12024 - - 11,489 |
2025 L i L L B 11,489
2026 L na]
3(12’1% o 11,il§9
fThereaﬁ_eL_i e S h,,ﬂ

380427
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The Company's intangible assets other than goodwill consisted of the following (in thousands):

Weighted
Ti\;’eersaig: December 31,
B o 7 o o years 2022 2021
Customer relationships o 7 8.1 § 85615 § 86,281
Existing technology ) 7 B 56 48,297 49,029
Trade names - indefinite lived , | Indefinite ,2?’3,14 A, - 22"748,,‘
Patents _ ] ‘ ‘ o o 7.2 20,926 20,355
rNBn-cnmpete agreements - ) 7 29 3662 3,708
Trade names - defmiAte lived - o 7 o - 6.0 3,949 3,255
In-process research and development , o 7 Indefinite 183 193
- » S o o 184,946 185,569
Less: accﬁmulated amortization o o . ’ (152,343)  (148,327)
Total intangible assets, net $ 32603 § 37242
Amortization cxpensce wa3s recorded a3 follows (in thousands):
Years ended
December 31,
[ B . . . ~ - B PRI - - 2022 2021
Amomzatlon nt mtanglhlf- assefs S - o , 3 6,488 $ 8,063

Expected amortization of definite-lived intangible assets held as of December 31, 2022 is as follows (in thousands):

Year , o S , . _Amounts
20237 o ) ) o ) ) ) ) 4 ‘$ 7 4,244
2025 - i ) ] o » S 4 o 71,3796‘
2026 ; : N - o - 889 |
2027 o ‘ e . 356
Thereoftor __ 888

$ 10,106
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Note 7: Financing Arrangements

The Company's financing arrangements included term debt (the “Bank Term Debt”) and revolving credit facility with a
Bank, and an asset-based lending (ABL) credit facility with a separate Bank.

The Bank Term Debt is secured by certain of the Company's assets. The Bank Term Debt accrues interest at a base rate
plus 2% or at a rate equal to the Eurodollar rate plus 3% as selected by the Company. Interest is payable on at least a quarterly
basis and the weighted-average interest rate on the Bank Term Debt for the year ended December 31, 2022 was 4.7% (effective
rate of 7.1% at December 31, 2022). The credit agreement requires quarterly principal payments of at least $875,000 and
matures in April 2025. The Bank Term Debt's unpaid principal balance at December 31, 2022 was $334.6 million.

On August 31, 2022, the Company amended its revolving credit facility agreement to extend the maturity date to January

2025 Therevolvingcredit-facility-accrues-interest-at-a-base-rate-plus2%-or-at-a-rate-equal-to-the-secured-overnight-financing—- - --

rate (SOFR) rate plus 3%. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no borrowings under that facility.

On August 9, 2022 the Company amended its ABL credit agreement to extend the maturity date to January 2025. The
ABL facility has a maximum availability of $60.0 million based on certain Company collateral calculations and is secured by
certain accounts receivable and inventory, net of reserve balances, for certain of the Company's subsidiaries. As of
December 31, 2022, the Company had availability of $47.0 million. The ABL facility accrues interest at rates selected by the
Company which includes a Base Rate, as defined under the ABL agreement, and SOFR and Canadian prime rates plus an
incremental rate as provided for under the agreement. As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there were
borrowings of §5 million and $0 under the ARI. facility, respectively. The weighted-average interest rate on the ABL facility
for the year ended December 31, 2022 was 5.5%.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company's unamortized deferred financing costs related to the Bank Term Debt was
$3 million and $4.5 million, respectively, and was netted against the Bank Term Debt's long-term principal balance.

At December 31, 2022, the Company's unamortized deferred financing costs related to the ABL Facility were $0.8 million,
and comprised the balance of deferred financing costs, net included in other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Bank Term Debt and ABL Facility Covenants

The Bank Term Debt, Revolving Credit facility and the ABL facility contains events of default including, but not limited
to, nonpayment of principal or interest, violation of covenants, breaches of representations and warranties, cross-default to other
debt, bankruptcy and other insolvency events, material judgments, certain events, and certain changes of control of Shape
Technologies Group.



Other Debt

The Company's other debt is related to finance agreements at several foreign subsidiaries and is recorded in Other debt,
short-term and Other debt, long-term, on the consolidated balance sheets, and accrues interest at rates between 0% and 8%.

Aggregate annual principal maturities under the Bank Term Debt, ABL facility, and other debt consist of the following for
the years ending (in thousands):

Year , e ___Amounts
200 8 M8
2024 — - — - T - wm-?,SiZ_ =
2005 - - 327663
2026 N o e A_~2—8‘_
0
Thereafter 3
e 3903
~ Deferred financing costs e (2,976)

L ; - Total financing arrangements,pet . .. $ 340, 127 |

n Amounts do not include $0.8 million of deferred financing costs, net included in other long-term assets on the consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2022, related to revolving credit facilities.

Note 8: Warranties

The following table presents the activity for the Company's warranty obligations (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

2022 2021
Beginningbalance s 2025 2481]
Warranty | provnslon - . - - N _772,125 2,059
| | Settlements made v o ] - - B N o (2,048) (271:5‘83I
Ending balance $ 2,159 $ 2,082

The Company's warranty provision balance is included in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets.



Note 9: Income Taxes

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act contained a provision which requires the capitalization of Section 174 costs incurred in years
beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Section 174 costs are expenditures which represent research and development costs that
are incident to the development or improvement of a product, process, formula, invention, computer software, or technique.
This provision changes the treatment of Section 174 costs such that the expenditures are no longer allowed as an immediate

deduction but rather must be capitalized and amortized.

The income tax benefit (provision) is based on loss before income taxes reported for financial statement purposes. The
components of income (loss) before income taxes, based on tax jurisdiction, are as follows (in thousands):

Years ended

Incnme before income taxes

_United States income (loss)
‘Foreign income -
Total income before income taxes

December 31
2022 2021

s am s @
4,736 \

) 9,114
$ 13314 § 2542

The income tax provision is comprised of the following (in thousands):

‘Federal

State
Forexgn o
Current tax provnsnon o
Federal
State
Forexgn - ) o -
Deferred tax beneﬁt (prov1510n) -
Income taxprovision

Years ended

December 31,

‘ o - 2022 2021
S . S8 s 555,
T _ .22y (297
- - (6,358) (3,272
) - (7,091) (3,014)
S SR (-7 AN - L
~ e o ; (29),,,_“ L (19
- - ©(1,564) (698):
- o (1,406) 88
- i 8 (349D 8 (2.926)

The reconciliation between the Company's effective tax rate on loss before income taxes and the statutory tax rate is as

follows:

Income tax provnsxon at federal statutory rale )
State and local taxes net of federal taxes

| Nondeductible/nontaxable items

Foreign operations
Valuatnon allowance
‘Tax return to pl‘OVISlOI‘l ad]ustments o
+Unrecognized tax benefits

Research and development crednts

'Income tax provision

Years ended

December 31,

- e 2022 2021
L 210% 210%
o 45% 1167%
174% 871 %
S 223% 913 %
o i ,”(390)% 444 %{
= C08)% (3‘!:5)‘%?
I < 4T% B0
337 % (16.8)%

63.8 % 115.1 %



Components of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

S ) 2022 2021
.. Net operating loss carryforwards 8 7485 8 13519
' Inventory L o 3464 3,738
nterest . 1Ls4e 10485
" Rescarchand developmenteredits 9% 6340
Ceaseliability T om0 3630 - —
Other 7 o ) 9,616 9,446
C Deferredtaxassets 38440 43528
_ Valuationallowance o (@2990)  (28,177)

Total deferred taxassets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets

15450 15351

i

(9135 (10481)

__Property, plant and equipment ) . . o 02y o (1,809)
Other (3,716) (4,075)
| Deferred income tax liabilities (18.183) _ (16,365)
Net deferred income tax liabilities $§ (2733) $§ (1,014

The $5.2 million decrease in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets between December 31, 2022 and 2021 relates
to the realizability of net operating losses, research and development credit, and the deduction for interest expense.

As of December 31, 2022 the Company had gross federal, state, and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $200,000, $40.0 million, and $2.1 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss carryforwards have
carryforward periods that are indefinite. The state net operating loss carryforwards have carryforward periods of 5-20 years and
begin to expire in 2023. A company’s ability to utilize a portion of its net operating loss carryforwards to offset future taxable
income may be subject to limitation under Section 382 of the IRC due to changes in the equity ownership of the company. The
Company believes an ownership change occurred in a prior period and that the net operating losses will be subject to limitation.
A preliminary estimate indicates that the Company will not be limited in the current period. A more formal analysis will be
conducted prior to filing the tax return. As of December 31, 2022, the Company's research and development tax credit
carryforwards for income tax purposes were $1 million. If not utilized, a portion of the research and development tax credit
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2039.

The Company considers the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries to be permanently reinvested and,
accordingly, no U.S. income taxes have been provided thereon.



The following is a tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of the Company's unfecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Yearsended

r » December?lﬁ, }
o - ) B S 2022 2021

rBalmce beginning of year L , & 7948 § M
Decreases related to cash settlements e _(l,_lﬁl]l_*_/mt
{Gioss incieases - tax Editions incurrentperiod 779 1,134)
Grosi decreases - tax tax positions in prior periods e (272) =
{ {Gross decreases in tax positions due to lapse of statute of llmltétlons ) ’ - ’ ) (22) - «( IE?;(W
Balance, end of year $ 7.316 § 7,948

The $7.3 million of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2022 if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate
and would result in adjustments to other tax accounts, primarily deferred taxes. The Company estimated $40,000 of uncertain
tax benefits in long-term payables will change in the next 12 months related to transfer pricing due to the expiration of the
statute of limitations. In addition, the unrecognized tax benefit balance can fluctuate due to the outcome of the research and
development credit study.

The Company recorded interest and penalties of $1.8 million and $2.2 million in long-term payables in the consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, related to uncertain tax positions. During the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Company recorded net interest (benefit)/expense of ($245,000) and $169,000, respectively,
which is included in Income tax provision on the consolidated statements of operations. -

The Company is subject to taxation in the United States, various state and foreign jurisdictions. There was an audit
settlement of $2.5 million with Germany covering years 2014-2017. The tax years 2018-2021 will be audited in 2023 by the
German tax authorities. The Company's reserve for uncertain tax positions include unresolved matters with the German taxing
authorities. These reserves are subject to a high degree of estimation and management judgment. Resolution of these
significant unresolved matters could have a material impact on the Company's financial results in future periods. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for years prior to year 2013.

Note 10: Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-Based Compensation

The Parent Company has established an equity compensation plan (the "Plan") to promote the growth and success of the
business by aligning long-term interests of employees with those of shareholders. There are 21,500 shares authorized for
issuance under the Plan in the form of stock, stock units, stock options, stock appreciation rights, or cash awards. As of
December 31, 2022, the Parent Company had 9,051 shares of common stock available for future issuance under its Plan.

Stock Options

The Parent Company grants stock options to employees in certain management positions of the Company with service and/
or performance conditions. For options granted under the Plan, they vest over the expected service period. The remaining 50%
will vest upon a change of control event provided the transaction price exceeds various thresholds. The awards are exercisable
upon a change of control event or, in the case of the time vested options, immediately prior to their expiration date if a change
of control event has not occurred. The compensation cost of stock options expected to vest is based on their fair value at the
date of grant, net of expected forfeitures, and recognized ratably over the vesting period for the time vested options. No
compensation cost will be recorded for the performance-based awards until it is deemed probable that a change of control event
will occur at a price in excess of the performance thresholds. :

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calculate grant-date fair value of the Parent's stock options
using the assumptions noted in the following table. The expected term of the options was computed using the estimated period
of time over which the options will be outstanding before being exercised. The risk-free interest rates are determined using the
implied yield currently available for zero-coupon U.S. government issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term of
the awards. Volatility is calculated using the average volatility of comparable public companies due to the Company's limited
historical stock transactions. .



The Company did not grant any stock options in the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not anticipate that any dividends
will be paid in the foreseeable future based upon management intent.

The following table summarizes stock option activities for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Weighted- Weighted-

—— .-

Average Average
Number of Exercise Remaining
. ; Options Price Life (Years)
|Qulstanding at December 31,2020, 2021 and 2022 : . 8816 8 353 |
[Options exercisable at December 31,2022 a6 33 19
Options vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2022 8,664 353 2.1

The Company included the following amounts for stock-based compensation expense, which related to stock options, in
the consolidated statements of operations (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

- w20

LSales and marketing ) ] o - 11 13 ‘;
General and administrative e o $ 4 14

: %‘Research and develoginiéﬁ - o o ' o = s J‘
Costofsales ‘ o 7 - o — 1

[Total v ' $ 15 § 33

In addition to the Cash Awards, total unrecognized stock compensation expense includes $1.5 million at December 31,
2022, of which will be recognized when, or if, it becomes probable that a change of control event will occur at a price in excess
of the performance thresholds, as defined in the agreement.

Note 11: Retirement Plans

The Company has defined contribution 401(k) plans covering substantially all employees in the United States. The plans
allow employees to defer a portion of their employment income. Participants age 50 or older may elect to defer additional
amounts to the plans as allowed under the IRC. Each employee who elects to participate is eligible to receive Company
matching contributions that are based on employee contributions to the plans, subject to certain limitations. Company
contributions and expenses under the 401(k) plans were $1.4 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Note 12: Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company's current assets and liabilities approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of
these assets and liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis that are included in consolidated
balance sheets consist of a cost-method investment. That financial assets are measured at fair value when impairment indicators
exist. Due to significant unobservable inputs, the fair value measures used to evaluate impairment and to calculate a prevailing
market interest rate are Level 3 inputs.



Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company discloses and classifies fair value measurements in one
of the following three categories:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted
assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability;
Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
. unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity).

The following tables present information about the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 (in thousands):

December 31, 2022
Balance at
December
e e Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31,2022
Eam-out contingent considerationNote2) ~$  — 8§ — $ 5790 § 5790
December 31, 2021
’ Balance at
December
e o Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31,2021
[Earn-our contingent Considerarlon (Note ) - §  © — § = § 2548 §  2,48]

The earn-out contingent consideration was incurred from acquisitions in 2021 as described in "Note 2: Business
Combinations.” The Company generally determined the fair value of the earn-out contingent consideration at December 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021 by using discounted cash flow models for the earn-out payments, weighted by the estimated
probability of earn-out payments being earned and paid. The models relied upon certain unobservable inputs, including
management’s estimate of the range of future EBITDA achieved, the probabilities of achieving them, and the annual discount
rates applied to the payments.

The following table presents a reconciliation for the Company's earn-out contingent consideration recorded at fair value on
a recurring basis, using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

o e 2022 2021
Beginningbalance 8 258§ 498]
Additions S L5790 2,548
Setflements o _ o (@ssh)  (560)
Adjustments to estimated liabilities Note2) 116 62
Ending balance h o o 3 5,790 $ 2,548 |

There were no significant transfers between any levels during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
Note 13: Leases

The Company has lease arrangements for certain office, warehouse and manufacturing facilities and equipment throughout
the world. These leases typically have original terms no exceeding 10 years and generally contain multi-year renewal options,
some of which are reasonably certain of exercise. The lease periods expire between 2023 and 2032.



Payments under the Company’s lease arrangements may be fixed or variable over the terms of the leases. Total rental
expenses for facilities and equipment, including variable and short-term costs, were $8 million and $7.5 million for the years

ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 respectively.

Operating lease cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Components of operating lease expense

were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022 (in thousands):

o e N Amounts
Operating leasecost 84676
Vanable and shor}-term lease Pcost 3,285
| Totaloperaingleasecot . 8 7,961

As of December 31, 2022, our operating leases had a weighted average remaining lease term of 7.01 years and a weighted
average discount rate of 1.43%. Future lease payments under operating leases as of December 31, 2022 were as follows (in

thousands):
Year . — ... _Amounts
2023 ) S 8 459
2024 o ) o o S ) 4078
25 38
2026 o e - - o 3,225
2027 3201
Thereafter “_Mwww“_w“____}_l_%
(, o TUldl Futuw  lease paymeuls e S o 4»29»,5755
- Less: 1mputed mterest B e (2,624)
¢L~ o ; _Present value of lease llabllmes e $ 26951 |

As of December 31, 2022, the Company does not have any material financing leases.

Note 14: Commitments and Contingencies

Pledged Assets

The Company has pledged a portion of its cash as collateral for certain of its revenue arrangements and property-lease
banking arrangements. The following table provides a reconciliation of the amount of cash and restricted cash reported within
the consolidated balance sheets to the total of the same such amounts shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows (in

thousands):

December 31,
lgeﬁsgrlvet_ed cash mcluded in prepald expenses and other current assets S o 17§55 788
Restncted cash mcluded in other long-term assets ] L N o 7 7 ) 2,637 F3,48.13 )
Total cash and restricted cash shown in the consolldated statements of cash ﬂows $ 15636 $§ 18,892

See "Note 7: Financing Arrangements” for information regarding the Company's assets pledged as collateral to secure its

debt.



Product Liability

Currently there are no material outstanding product liability claims arising out of the sale of current and former products of
the Company. To minimize the financial impact of these claims, the Company purchases product liability insurance.

Management periodically evaluates the merit of all claims, including product liability claims, as well as considering
unasserted claims. Recoveries, if any, may be realized from indemnitors, codefendants, insurers or insurance guaranty funds.
Management believes its insurance coverage is adequate to satisfy any liabilities that are incurred.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is, from time to time, party to various legal proceedings arising out of its business. The amount of alleged
liability,-if-any.,-from-these-proceedings-cannot-be-determined-with-certainty;-however,-the-Company's-management-believes - -
that the Company's ultimate liability, if any, arising from pending legal proceedings, as well as from asserted legal claims and
known potential legal claims which are probable of assertion, taking into account established accruals for estimated liabilities,
should not be material to its business, financial condition or results of operations.

Personal Injury Actions

Product and general liability claims arise against the Company from time to time in the ordinary course of business. These
claims are generally covered by appropriate insurance. Recoveries, if any, may be realized from indemnitors, codefendants,
insurers or insurance guaranty funds. There is inherent uncertainty as to the eventual resolution of unsettled claims.
Management, however, believes that any losses will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 15: Related-Party Transactions

The Company had amounts due to the Parent Company of $9.8 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and is included on
the balance sheets as a long-term payable due to “the Parent Company,” as it is not expected to be repaid during the next fiscal
year.

On May 31, 2022, the Company entered into a 10 year lease with the prior owner of Evomatic, which resulted in $292,000
in lease costs for the year ended December 31, 2022.

During 2022 and 2021, the Company also reimbursed expenses incurred by AIP, a stockholder in the Parent Company.
These expenses were not significant.

Ascent Aerospace, an AIP portfolio company, purchases products from the Company which are recorded as sales.

The balances between SHAPE and all related parties, except for the $9.8 million long-term receivable from our Parent
Company, are classified as current receivables and payables on the consolidated balance sheets and are settled under customary
terms. The Company included the following amounts for transactions with related parties in the consolidated statements of
operations (in thousands):

Years ended
December 31,

e B o 2022 2021
sales e .8 13§ 31
Expense reimbursements 87 396

The Company's balances with related parties consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
e - 2022 2021
Long-term receivables I L9790 9790



Note 16: Restructuring Charges

As part of its integration and optimization efforts, the Company reviews its global footprint and worldwide staffing to
ensure that it is best positioned to service its customers. In the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company
incurred costs related to activities intended to improve its operational efficiencies and to exit certain product lines. These costs
primarily included personnel termination costs and costs incurred related to optimize its European entity and facility structure.

The Company's restructuring charges in conjunction with restructuring its operations consisted of the following (in
thousands):

Years ended

December 31,
e - o 2022 2021
(Restructuring charges % 346 § 1935

Following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the restructuring liability (in thousands):

Employee Facility
termination Exitin consolidation
benefits product lines costs Total
Balance al Decernber 31, 2021 (s . 318 — % — § 301
Provision for restructuring events 149 — 649 798
_ (T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T e e e e e e e T
Pavimeits and adjustiments L {450 L = ((49) ; (1,099),
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ — § — 3 — 3 —

Note 17: Subsequent Events

Other than the matters discussed below, the Company performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 30,
2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued and determined there were no recognized subsequent events
that would require disclosure in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2022.



